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SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

	Date:
	February 28, 2023

	Subject:
	Questions and Answers

	Solicitation Number:
	RFP 2023-1

	Due Date/Time:
	March 13, 2023 4:00PM EST

	Addendum Number:
	1






To All Suppliers:

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania defines a solicitation “Addendum” as an addition to or amendment of the original terms, conditions, specifications, or instructions of a procurement solicitation (e.g., Invitation for Bids or Request for Proposals). 

List any and all changes:

RFP 2023-1
Service Organization Controls (SOC) 1 Type 2 Audit Readiness and Audit Services
Questions and Answers

1. How many applications and systems are in-scope? Are change management and logical access controls centralized and homogeneous across all in-scope applications and systems?

Most of the primary applications are third-party Software as a Solution (SaaS) products.  The number in scope for evaluation will be determine during the readiness phase.

2. Will any subservice organizations be presented using the inclusive method?

A complete assessment and audit of subservice organizations is out of scope, but the link to risks and PSERS’s controls to validate accuracy and completeness of the transactions processed must be considered within scope.
3. Is remote testing permitted? If not, what physical locations are in-scope?

Yes.  PSERS Headquarters is in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

4. We acknowledge 16 control objectives, but is there an estimated control count or control activity number range?


The control count in scope for evaluation will be determined during the readiness phase.  

5. Will the SOC 1 Type 2 report be provided to one User Entity (single user) or multiple?
If possible, identify the user entities. 

No. The report will be used internally by the Board to meet legislative requirements. 


6. What is the Commonwealth’s desired period of scope which will be covered in the SOC 1 Type 2 examination?  Please provide start and end period.

The Timeline and Key Milestones for this project can be found in Appendix L of the RFP. The examination period will be the Steady State period from September 2023-February 2025.

7. Are there any subservice organizations engaged in the delivery of Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) services which are material in nature to the system?

Yes.

8. If subservice organizations are engaged, can you identify the entities and provide the level of services provided?

Subservice organizations engaged in the delivery of PSERS’ services include but are not limited to: Buck for actuarial services; CapTrust for consultation on the DC plan; Unisys for data center; BNY Mellon and STP for investment reporting; Vitech (V3) for general pension administration (members/employers).

9. If subservice organizations are engaged, is the Commonwealth’s intention to include their controls in the scope of the readiness assessment and in the performance of the SOC 1 Type 2 examination?  Or is the intent to “carved-out” any or all subservice organizations from scope?

Please see response to Question #2.

10. Has there been any significant deficiencies and/or material weaknesses noted by the Internal Audit Office or other agency related to the PSERS? 


No.

11. Aside from the work areas at PSERS’ headquarters will there be a need to visit other sites during the project?  Please consider multiple locations if subservice organization controls are included in scope.

No.

12. Can the readiness assessment and/or SOC examination be conducted remotely or is the Commonwealth’s expectation for the auditor to be fully on-site?

Yes, fieldwork may be completed remotely unless there is a need for on-site visit(s) related to the specifics of the engagement plan and/or procedures needed (e.g. observation of a live trade).

13. Will proposals from offerors outside of Pennsylvania be accepted?  If so, at what point does the offeror need to register with the Commonwealth?

Yes. Following the evaluation of proposals, if selected for negotiations, Offeror must register as a supplier with the Commonwealth.

14. Is the Commonwealth’s intent only to undergo the SOC examination one time?  Or will future RFPs be issued to engage a qualified vendor to perform the SOC examination for multiple years?

No.  The examination is required every 5 years. The procurement strategy for future assessment and audit will be determined by the PSER Board.

15. Per section III-3 Training of the RFP – It is requested of the offeror to recommend training of agency personnel.  Can you expand on what specific training is being required?

Relevant training may include but is not limited to the internal controls framework, enterprise risk management, risks, controls, deficiencies, etc.

16. Is there a compliance department of similar at the Commonwealth which will oversee the readiness assessment and SOC examination?  Or has a responsible individual(s) been identified at PSERS to be the main point of contact for the auditor?



The Internal Audit Office reporting to the Audit Risk and Compliance committee of the board is responsible for overseeing the engagement.

17. [bookmark: _Hlk128143406]If the offeror is recognized as a Small Business Enterprise by the Department of General Services, can it count towards the SDB and VBE participation requirements? 

No. Only DGS verified SDB and VBE vendors can count towards the SDB and VBE participation goals.  Please review SDB-1 and VBE-1 “Instructions, specifically, II. SDB Eligibility and II. VBE Eligibility”.

18. How many out-reach attempts to SDB and VBE are considered enough to constitute Good-Faith Effort? 

No. Please review SDB-4 “Guidance for Documenting Good Faith Efforts.”

19. Can the offeror engage a SDB and/or VBE which does not operate and/or is registered with the Commonwealth (Pennsylvania Department of General Services)?

Only DGS verified SDB and VBE vendors can count towards the SDB and VBE participation goals.  Please review SDB-1 and VBE-1 “Instructions, specifically, II SDB Eligibility and II. VBE Eligibility”.

20. [bookmark: _Hlk128143429]Are there specific SAP numbers required to be search by the offeror during the supplier search for this specific RFP?  If so, what are they?

The Commonwealth of PA does not use SAP numbers in the goal setting process.  It does however identify potentially sub-contractable components of work using UNSPSC Codes for customized goal setting for every solicitation.  In calculating the SDB participation goal for this procurement, the Commonwealth identified the below sub-contractable items of work. However, it is a prime offeror’s business decision as to how to meet the SDB requirements.  Offerors are free to identify any additional commercially useful scopes of work/UNSPSC codes for subcontracting opportunities for this procurement, or to seek a waiver from the goal consistent with the Guidance set forth in SDB-4.  84111600 - Audit services and 80101500 - Business and corporate management consultation services.





21. AICPA guidelines prohibit accounting firms from indemnifying attest clients for damages, losses, or costs that relate, directly or indirectly, to an attest client’s acts. Given this prohibition, would PSERS consider removing and/or modifying the indemnification language contained in the sample contract?

PSERS will not remove the indemnification language but is willing to add the following sentence: “For the avoidance of doubt, the Contractor shall not be responsible for any such liability to the extent that such liability was caused by misrepresentations of material facts or by other negligent or wrongful acts by the Commonwealth.”


22. Is PSERS open to a SOC 1 Type 1 prior to conducting the SOC 1 Type 2? 

No.

23. Is PSERS open to a SOC 1 Type 2 for a period longer than four months?

The schedule of audit events and related timeframes is outlined in Appendix L. PSERS does not intend to deviate from that schedule.

24. Is the suggested SOC 1 Type 2 reporting period of March to June 2025 a definitive timeline or will that be flexible based on how long it may take to remediate gaps identified during the Readiness Assessment phase?

Please see response to Question #23.

25. Would the contract be extended if the Readiness Assessment phase ends on schedule, but the remediation phase took longer than anticipated and delayed the start of the SOC 1 Type 2 audit?

Please see response to Question #23.

26. If the August 2025 Board meeting is the required due date, do you know the exact date that materials would be due?

Not at this time; however, this date will be no earlier than July 1.


27. Does the contract require any in-person visits to PSERS location(s)?




The presentation to the Board shall be in-person if possible. Currently we don’t anticipate in person visits are needed for the field work but could change depending on business needs.


28. Do you have an estimated communication frequency that you expect from the awarded firm during each phase outlined in Appendix L?

At a minimum, PSERS prefers every two weeks; however, communications and updates may be more often to discuss issues or exceptions.


29. [bookmark: _Hlk128143382]Is there a specific number of SDB’s and VBE’s a bidder must contact to qualify for the Good Faith Efforts waiver? 

Please see response to Question #18.



Except as clarified and amended by this Addendum, the terms, conditions, specifications, and instructions of the solicitation and any previous solicitation addenda, remain as originally written.


Respectfully,

Name: 	Beverly Hudson
Title: 	Issuing Officer
Email:  	behudson@pa.gov
BOP-1305			
Revised 02/03/2020
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